


County of Los Angeles 

Beach 
Commission 

13837 Fiji Way, Marina del Rey, CA 90292 
Phone: (310) 305-9546 Fax: (310) 822-0119 
Web Page:  http://beaches.lacounty.gov 

 

 

Rosi Dagit,  

Chair                        

Jeffrey Sallee, 

Vice-Chair 

 

 

     

   Thomas Barnes  

   Thomas Brewer 

   Walt Dougher 

   Ginny Kruger 

   Margaret Levy 

   Cris B. Liban 

   Kelly McDowell 

     

    Charles Milam  

    Maureen O’Donnell 

    Wayne Powell 

    Anthea Raymond 

    Scott Sachs 

    Bruce Saito 

    Peter Tucker    

          

Mitch Ward      

         

           

             

  

                                                

   
       

   
       

 

AGENDA 
   Meeting of the Beach Commission 

    March 23, 2016 
   9:30 a.m. 

Burton Chace Park Community Room 
13650 Mindanao Way 

Marina del Rey, CA  90292 
    

1.  CALL TO ORDER AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
     
2.  APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
       
 February 24, 2016 
 
3. OLD BUSINESS   
 

A. Venice Lifeguard Headquarters Status   (VERBAL REPORT) 
B. DBH Beach Jurisdictions/Assets    (DISCUSSION) 

 

4. NEW BUSINESS 
 

A. Redondo Beach Waterfront Development  (PRESENTATION) 
 

5. STAFF REPORTS 
 

 A.  Ongoing Activities Report     (REPORT) 
 Board Actions on Items Relating to Beaches 

 B.  Beach Special Events/Activities    (REPORT) 
 C.  Operational Services Division Report   (REPORT) 

Regarding Beach Maintenance 
B. Capital Projects Status Report/Related Activities (REPORT) 
C. Lifeguard Report      (VERBAL REPORT) 

 

http://beaches.lacounty.gov/


Beach Commission 
February 18, 2016 
Page 2 
 

 

 
 
6. COMMISSIONER COMMENTS 
 
7. COMMUNICATION FROM THE PUBLIC 
 
8. NEXT MEETING DATE & LOCATION 
 
 Wednesday, April 27, 2016, 9:30 a.m. at Burton Chace Park Community Room, 

13650 Mindanao Way, Marina del Rey, CA 90292. 
 
9. ADJOURNMENT 

PLEASE NOTE:   
 
1. The Los Angeles County Board of Supervisors adopted Chapter 2.160 of the Los 

Angeles Code (Ord. 93-0031 § 2 (part), 1993), relating to lobbyists. Any person who 
seeks support or endorsement from the Beach Commission on any official actions must 
certify that he/she is familiar with the requirements of this ordinance.  A copy of the 
ordinance can be provided prior to the meeting and certification is to be made before or 
at the meeting. 

 
2.        The agenda will be posted on the Internet and displayed at the following locations at 

least 72 hours preceding the meeting date: 
 
Department of Beaches and Harbors’ Website Address: marinadelrey.lacounty.gov 
 
     Department of Beaches and Harbors  Marina del Rey Information Center 
           Administration Building   4701 Admiralty Way 
   13837 Fiji Way  Marina del Rey, CA 90292  
    Marina del Rey, CA 90292 
 
     Burton Chace Park Community Room Lloyd Taber – Marina del Rey 
Library 
     13650 Mindanao Way    4533 Admiralty Way 
     Marina del Rey, CA 90292   Marina del Rey, CA 90292 
 
Si necesita asistencia para interpretar esta informacion llame al (310) 305-9546.                                                                
 

ADA ACCOMMODATIONS: If you require reasonable accommodations or auxiliary aids 
and services such as material in alternate format or a sign language interpreter, please 
contact the ADA (Americans with Disability Act) Coordinator at (310) 305-9538 (Voice) 
or (TTY/TDD) users, please call the California Relay Service at 711. The ADA 
coordinator may be reached by email at rstassi@bh.lacounty.gov. 

http://marinadelrey.lacounty.gov/


COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES BEACH COMMISSION 
MINUTES OF FEBRUARY 24, 2016 MEETING 

 

COMMISSIONERS PRESENT     

Rosi Dagit, Chair 

Jeffrey S. Sallee, Vice Chair 

Anthea Raymond 

Chuck Milam 

Cris B. Liban 

Margaret Levy 

Maureen O’Donnell 

Mitch Ward 

Peter Tucker 

Scott Sachs 

Thomas Brewer 

Virginia Kruger 

Walt Dougher 

Wayne Powell 

 

ABSENCES 

Bruce Saito 

Kelly McDowell 

Thomas Barnes 

 

STAFF PRESENT 

Kerry Silverstrom, Chief Deputy Director 

John Kelly, Deputy Director, Facilities/Capital Projects/Maintenance/Traffic Planning, 

Harbor Engineering Bureau 

Kenneth Foreman, Division Chief, Operational Services Division 

Carol Baker, Division Chief, Community & Marketing Services Division 

 

GUEST SPEAKERS 

Christina Angeles Salseda, County Counsel 

 

MEETING LOCATION 

Dockweiler Youth Center Multipurpose Room 

 

 

 

 

 



Beach Commission Minutes 
Meeting of February 24, 2016 
Page 2 of 7 

 

1.  CALL TO ORDER AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

Chair Dagit called the meeting to order at 9:38 a.m. She requested that Commissioner 

Ward lead everyone in the Pledge of Allegiance. 

 

2. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

 

Chair Dagit motioned for approval of the January 27, 2016 minutes. Commissioner 

Raymond seconded approval. 

 

The minutes were unanimously approved by the Commissioners. 

 

3. OLD BUSINESS 

A. VENICE LIFEGUARD HEADQUARTERS STATUS 

Chief Moseley was unable to attend, and no updates were available from the Lifeguard 

Division. Ms. Baker said that a tour of the Venice Lifeguard facility will be arranged for 

interested Beach Commissioners. 

 

4. NEW BUSINESS 

A. BEACH COMMISSION HISTORY/ROLE 

Chair Dagit introduced Kerry Silverstrom and Christina Salseda. 

Ms. Silverstrom spoke on the history and role of the Beach Commission. She referred to 

a PowerPoint slide show which detailed key dates and developments from the 1971 

establishment of the Commission to the present. 

Commissioner Liban asked if there had been any significant changes to the responsibility 

of the Commission throughout its history. Ms. Silverstrom replied that the scope had been 

moved from beach projects to more general beach-related issues. 

Commissioner Raymond commented that she read on the DBH website that the Beach 

Commission reviews capital projects, contracts and policies, and asked if that was 

consistent with the Commission’s role. Ms. Silverstrom replied that DBH day-to-day beach 

operations and maintenance are routinized. Commission input on routine operations and 

contracts is welcome. But the Commission is more often engaged with sporadic and 

broader public policy issues. 

Commissioner Levy asked if the Beach Commission’s role interplays with the State 

legislative agenda. Ms. Silverstrom replied that DBH has a much smaller piece of the 



Beach Commission Minutes 
Meeting of February 24, 2016 
Page 3 of 7 

 

County’s legislative agenda in Sacramento than larger, higher-priority departments such 

as Mental Health, Public Health, Welfare, Jails and Criminal Justice. The biggest struggle 

is to get a definition of “beach” identified in any Park bond act or initiative. 

Christina Salseda of County Counsel introduced herself and spoke about the 

composition, duties and rules of the Beach Commission. 

Commissioner Levy asked whether Beach Commission rules might be revised so that 

Commissioners who have missed more than three or four meetings could be removed. 

Ms. Salseda replied that the process of amending bylaws would include creating a draft, 

and submitting the draft to her for review. Then DBH would put the proposed amendments 

on its letterhead and submit it to the Board of Supervisors. She said that membership in 

the Commission is codified in the County Code, and that a better approach might be to 

change the definition of a quorum. Ms. Silverstrom commented that DBH does not have 

input on removing Commissioners, and that this is an issue of sensitivity with Supervisors, 

but the Board is routinely notified when Commissioners are absent from meetings. 

Chair Dagit said that it would be very helpful for everyone in the Commission to receive 

a copy of the rules for review. 

Commissioner Liban suggested the formation of a subcommittee to review and explore 

possible changes to the by-laws. 

Ms. Salseda said that the Commission has no input in deciding how many Commissioners 

there should be, or whether a Commissioner can be removed, but that they may adjust 

the definition of a quorum so that business can be conducted regardless of absent 

Commissioners. 

Carol Baker offered suggestions of how the Beach Commission/Commissioners could 

help DBH.  The Commissioners can act as liaisons between the public and DBH, and 

keep the BOS Offices informed on relevant beach-related issues. They can assist DBH 

in securing designated funding for beaches by becoming informed and active on 

proposed County parks funding measures. Commissioners can educate policy 

makers/other key influencers on beach-related needs. 

Commissioner Kruger asked if there has been any discussion of putting specified projects 

into proposed ballot measures which may appeal to specific communities. Ms. Silverstrom 

said that DBH staff have been busy developing a list identifying beach needs which should 

be available in April. This list will be attached as an addendum to the needs assessment 

presented to the Board of Supervisors. 



Beach Commission Minutes 
Meeting of February 24, 2016 
Page 4 of 7 

 

Commissioner Levy asked if a beach-specific ballot measure has ever been tried or 

introduced. Ms. Silverstrom replied no, and said that the beaches have often been taken 

for granted as a natural resource, and suffer from a lack of local, unified and vocal 

constituencies to stand up for beach needs. Ms. Salseda commented that a successful 

ballot measure would require a two-thirds vote. 

Commissioner Sachs asked if the amount of money brought into the Los Angeles 

economy by our beaches has been researched and considered. Ms. Silverstrom said yes, 

and that this data has been included when presenting beach needs assessments. 

Commissioner Dougher asked about beach development, beach income and the 

possibility of liquor being served on the beaches. Ms. Silverstrom replied that there is a 

no-alcohol policy on LA County beaches, with the exception of permitted parties. She also 

commented that State beaches transferred to LA County management are deed-

restricted and that new development, commercial or non-commercial, is often not allowed. 

Commissioner Powell said that he spoke with a representative of the Auditor-Controller’s 

office during the recent Sunset Review, and that the AC’s office was very impressed with 

the overall accomplishments of the Beach Commission, but that the lack of attendance 

was a problem. He then asked if DBH has taken a position on the adverse impacts of the 

proposed West Basin Desalination plant. Ms. Baker replied that that is a policymaker 

concern, and that any positions would be taken by the Board of Supervisors, and that 

DBH would not weigh in on that issue. John Kelly commented that DBH does look at the 

related EIR for direct effects on DBH’s routine operations, but there seldom are any direct 

effects. 

B. BEACH HOMELESS ENCAMPMENTS 

Ms. Silverstrom commented on the homeless populations and encampments on LA 

County beaches. She said that this is a law enforcement issue. Homeless people are 

allowed on the beach anytime during the day. They can erect two-sided tents which are 

open on both sides and allow clear visibility for law enforcement purposes. There is no 

loitering on the beaches between midnight and 6:00 a.m. There is no sleeping on the 

beach overnight. It’s up to local LAPD, LA County Sheriffs, or other local law 

enforcement to enforce these laws. 

Commissioner Ward asked if DBH is able to work with homeless advocacy groups like 

P.A.T.H. which assist in getting the homeless out of the open spaces and into housing. 

Ms. Silverstrom replied that DBH works with the LA County Departments of Public 

Social Services, Mental Health and Public Health to try and get social workers out onto 

the beaches and connect homeless persons with available services. 



Beach Commission Minutes 
Meeting of February 24, 2016 
Page 5 of 7 

 

 

Commissioner Levy asked if the knolls between the bike path and the Venice boardwalk 

were the City’s responsibility. Ms. Silverstrom replied yes, but that the County does help 

a little with the sand and parking lots. 

Commissioner Milam asked about the abandoned DPW facility near Oxford Avenue in 

Marina del Rey, and if DBH is aware of the growing homeless population using this 

facility. John Kelly replied that DBH is aware of the situation, but it is outside their 

jurisdiction. It is outside MdR. It belongs to the City, and it is the LAPD’s responsibility to 

enforce laws there. 

C. BEACH COMMISSION CALENDAR/MEETING TOPICS 

Chair Dagit introduced a memo including a list of possible topics and invited questions. 

 

Commissioner Powell requested an El Nino update. 

 

Commissioner Sachs suggested a copper paint update which had already been 

suggested as an agenda item for the Commission in November 2016. 

 

John Kelly suggested that the Commission invite someone who represents Broad Beach 

to speak. Chair Dagit clarified that the Commission is only interested in how the Broad 

Beach project will impact DBH operations. 

 

Mr. Kelly said that the beach needs assessment may still be in the draft stages in April. 

Ms. Baker commented that she got the April date from Gary Jones who thought it was 

important to share this information with the Commission, and get the conversation going 

before the issue is taken up by the BOS in May. 

 

Commissioner Raymond suggested that the Commission be briefed on activity and 

development relating to the LA River. 

 

Commissioner Sachs asked if the Beach Commission can find ways to help DBH enhance 

revenue. Chair Dagit said that she was concerned about waiting until April to address the 

beach needs assessment, because the sooner the Commission is informed, the more 

chance it has of increasing the DBH profile and creating a line item specific to the 

beaches. 

 

Mr. Kelly clarified that the current beach needs assessment is strictly a physical 

evaluation of what infrastructure exists now, basically an engineering analysis detailing 



Beach Commission Minutes 
Meeting of February 24, 2016 
Page 6 of 7 

 

the condition of items such as buildings, sidewalks and concrete curbs, and what items 

will have to be replaced over the next 20 years. 

 

Ms. Baker said that DBH intends to present the Commission with maps and aerial photos 

detailing beach assets and jurisdictions, and that these images should be ready in time 

for the March meeting. 

 

Commissioner Milam asked if the Beach Commission has jurisdiction in convening a 

public meeting to strategize revenue enhancement. Ms. Baker said that all Beach 

Commission meetings are public and she does not see a legal issue, but that she will 

have to talk to Ms. Salseda about that to clarify. Ms. Baker said that it would be difficult 

to get the word out because DBH’s bandwidth is limited and that DBH Staff are entering 

into their busiest season. Mr. Kelly commented that there are self-imposed rules which 

control what DBH does that limit their time and ability to explore marketing and revenue 

generation ideas. 

 

5. STAFF REPORTS 

A. ONGOING ACTIVITIES REPORT 

Ms. Baker presented the written report. 

B. BEACH AND MARINA DEL REY SPECIAL EVENTS 

Ms. Baker presented the written report. 

C. OPERATIONAL SERVICES DIVISION REPORT 

Ken Foreman presented the written report. 

D. CAPITAL PROJECTS STATUS REPORT/RELATED ACTIVITIES 

John Kelly presented the written report. 

 

Commissioner Brewer commented that the restroom projects in Redondo are going slow. 

Mr. Kelly replied that the scope of the project had been underestimated, and that all of 

the plumbing needed to be replaced, and that DBH had to approach the Board for 

additional funding. The projects should be completed by April. 

E. LIFEGUARD REPORT 

Chief Moseley could not attend and offer a report. 

 



Beach Commission Minutes 
Meeting of February 24, 2016 
Page 7 of 7 

 

6.  COMMISSIONER COMMENTS 

 

Commissioner Powell invited Commissioners to attend the charitable event Tour de Pier 

on Sunday, May 15th in Manhattan Beach. 

 

Commissioner Levy proposed that we distribute the portion of the State legislative agenda 

pertaining to beaches that was adopted by the BOS on Dec. 8, 2015 to the members of 

the Commission, and then schedule that as something to discuss at a future Commission 

meeting. Ms. Baker said that she can send that out to the Commissioners. 

 

Commissioner Tucker said that the EIR for the installation fiber optic cables under the 

sand at Hermosa Beach is available for review on the City of Hermosa’s website. 

 

Mr. Kelly suggested a future agenda item on the topic of increasing access for disabled 

persons all the way down to the water at Will Rogers Beach. Ms. Baker offered to put it 

on the May agenda. 

 

The next Beach Commission Meeting is scheduled for March 23, 2016 at BURTON 

CHACE PARK COMMUNITY ROOM, 13650 Mindanao Way, Marina del Rey, CA 

90292. 

 

ADJOURNMENT 

 

Chair Dagit adjourned the meeting at 12:02 a.m. 

 

 

Respectfully Submitted, 

Robert Curtis 

Commission Secretary 































                      LOS ANGELES COUNTY BEACH COMMISSION ATTENDANCE REPORT 2016 

Commissioner/  
Appointed by       

Jan. Feb. March April May June July Sept Oct Nov Total 
Meetings 
Attended 
2015 

Barnes/Knabe            
Brewer/Knabe  X          
Dagit/Yaroslavsky X X          
Dougher/ Knabe X X          
Kruger/Yaroslavsky X X          
Levy/ Kuehl X X          
Liban/ Kuehl X X          

McDowell/ Knabe            

Milam/ Knabe X X          
O’Donnell/ Knabe X X          
Powell/ Knabe X X          
Raymond/ Kuehl X X          

Sachs/Ridley-Thomas X X          
Saito/ Solis X           
Sallee/ Knabe X X          
Tucker/ Knabe X X          
Ward/ Knabe X X          
VACANT/Kuehl            
VACANT/Kuehl            
VACANT/Antonovich            
INACTIVE MEMBERS (Missed three or more meetings in a row) 

** Resigned this year                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                         

No regularly scheduled meetings in August or December       *=No meeting       =Present       Blank=Absent    


